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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

'Fo the members of DS Digital PrivateLimited
Report on the Standalone Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of DS Digital Private Limited(‘the
Company’), which comprise the balance sheet as at 31 March 2018, the statement of profit and loss and
the cash flows and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) prescribed under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules 2015, as amended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory

information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance and cash
flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including
the [ndian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Compantes
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as amended and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design. implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Qur responsibility is to express an opinion on these standalone financial statements based on our audit.



We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made

thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under Section 143(10) of
the Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material

misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures
in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial control relevant to the
Company’s preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting estiinates made
by the Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overafl presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the standalene financial statements.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in the manner so
required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in
India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2018 and its profit, total comprehensive
inceme, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure A”, a statement on the matters specified in the paragraph 3 and 4 of the order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143 (3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) we have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

(b) in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books,

(¢) the balance sheet, the statement of profit and loss including other comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flow dealt with by this Report are in
agreement with the books of account;



(d) in our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the Accounting
Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act.

(e) on the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 3 | March 2018 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2018
from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) with respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in
“Anpexure B”; and

(g) with respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
i1 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i. the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its
financial statements;

ii. the Company did not have any long term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses;

iii.  therewere no amounts which were required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company.

ForMadan & Associales
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 000 185N

M. K. Madan
Proprietor
Membership number: $82214

Place: New Delhi

Date:



Annexure - A to the Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the Company on the
standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018, we report that:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

vi)

In respect of fixed assets:

(a) The Company has maintained records showing particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of fixed assets. Description / Model No. / Identification No. of Assets are not
recorded in the register. It is informed that records are being updated.

(b) The Company has a programme of verification of fixed assets to cover all the items in a
phased manner over a period of three years, which, in our opinion, is reasonable having
vegard to the size of the company and the nature of its assets. Pursuant 1o the said
programime, certain fixed assets were physically verified by the Management during the
year. According to the information and explanations given to us, no material discrepancies
were noticed on such verification. In respect of fixed assets given on operating lease to
various school, company has initiated the process of physical verification of assets and is
hopeful of completing the same within a span of 3 years. The reconciliation of physical
verification with financial records is in progress and management has certified that this will
be done in FY 2018-19 and adjustment entry if any shall be passed subsequently.

(¢) Company does not have any immovable property and therefore requirements of title deeds
as per para 3(1)( ¢) of the order are not applicable.

In respect of its inventories:
(a) As explained to us, inventories have been physically verified during the year by the
Management at close of the year.

(b) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
procedures of physical verification of inventories followed by the Management were
reasonable and adequate in relation to the size of the Company and the nature of its

business.

(¢)  Inour opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has maintained proper records of its inventories and no material discrepancies were noticed

on physical verification.

The Company hasnot granted loans to parties covered in the register maintained under section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act”). Thus, paragraph 3 (iii) of the Order is not applicable

to the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us and certified by the
company loans and investments made are in compliance of section 185 and 186 of the Act.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the company has not accepted any

deposits during the year.

Requirement of maintenance of cost records ~-e nof applicable to the company.



(vii)

{viii)

(1x)

(x)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

in respect of statutory dues:

(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the company has generally been regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident Fund, Employees State
insurance, income tax, sales tax, service tax, value added tax, cess and other material
statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities. There were no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid statutory dues in arrears as at 31.03.2018 for a
period of more than six months from the date they became payable. During the year
company has paid reimbursement of Rs. 76.27 Lacs towards hiring of workforce through
third party, evidence regarding the payment of statutory dues i.e PF /ESI ts pending from
the third party.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of income tax,
sales tax, service tax, value added tax, cess which have not been deposited as at 31.03.2018
on account of any dispute except as follows :

Sl Name of | Nature of Dues | Amount | Forum where dispule is
No. Statute Rs/lacs pending.

Ll U.P. VatAct, | Penalty u/s 54 (1) | 27.50 Appeal filed under UP.Vat

| ‘ 2008 inFY 2012 -13 Status as on date note available. ‘

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of loans or borrowings to a financial institution, bank, Government during the year.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanation given to us, the term loans have
been applied by the company during the year for the purposes for which they were obtained.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or
on the Company by its officers or employees has beer noticed or reported during the course of

our audit.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the company has not paid/provided any managerial remuneration within
the meaning of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not
a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177
and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of such transactions have been disclosed in the
financial statements as required by the applicable accounting standards.



(xiv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company. the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private
placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the vear.

{xv}  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not entered into non-cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xv} of the Order is not applicable.

{xvi)  The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India
Act 1934,

JorMadan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: G185N

M. K. Madan
Proprietor
Membership number: 082214
Place: New Delhi
Date:



Annexure - B to the Auditors’ Report

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (*the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of DS Digital Private
Limited(“the Company™) as of 31 March 2018 in conjunction with our audjt of the standalone financial
statements of the Company for the vear ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAT’).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business,
including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on
Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013. to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of
Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial
reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.

Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of
internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and
testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of intermal control based on the assessed
risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
matevial misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained js sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting A company's internal financial control
over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for externa) purposes in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)



provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
staternents in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection
of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect

on the financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the
possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the intemal financial
controls over financial reporting to future periods are suhject to the risk that the internal financiat control
over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating
effectively as at 31 March 2018, based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

ForMadan & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s registration number: 000185N

M. K. Madan
Proprietor
Membership number: 082214
Place: New Delhi
Date:



DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL200SPTC173250

Balance sheet as at 31 March 2018

{Amount io Rs.)
Particulars Notes As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 Aprit 2016
Assets
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 118,674,453 90,714,340 90,920,633
Other intangible assels 4 163,490,315 146,577 266 127,476,888
Capital work-in-progress - 1675618 297,638
Other intangible assets under development 4 23287 551 18,384,721 19.026,615
Financial assets
-Loans sc . 3,297,168 1,275,796 1,137,392
Deferred tax assets (net} : 8 127,146,447 97474119 97,474,119
Other non-current assels 1C 1,785,327 1,713,697 1,788,111
Total non-current assets 437,681,260 357,815,556 338,121,395
Current sssets
Inventories 6 3,767212 7,571,718 2,761,986
Financial assets
- Trade receivables sB 82,476.421 108,575,283 93,136,366
- Cash and cash equivalents 50 3,367,808 6,064,001 6,833,510
- Loans 5C 322,11 587,173 363,612
Oiher current assets 7 19,981,694 16,851,048 13,054,973
Tatal current assets 109.915.247 139,649,223 116,150.447
Total assets 547,596,507 497,464,718 454,271,842
Equity and liabilities
Equity
Equity share capital : . 9 347,289,200 347.289200 347,289,200
Other equity 10 (203,620,977) (174,854,649) (261,007,909}
Total equity 143,668,223 172,434,551 86,281,291
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 1A 206,577,745 114,300,003 111,002,008
Provisions 14 ' 5,419,832 4,633,119 3,166,638
Total non current liabilities 211,997,577 118,933,122 114,168,646
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
- Borrowings 11B 88,840,220 46,022 297 172,705,502
- Trade payables 12 67,985 625 117,004,148 29,378,062
- Other financial liabilities 13 26,670,496 31,416,686 31,861,861
Other current liabilities 15 6,743,468 10,137,489 18,530,784
Provisions 14 1,690.898 1,516,484 1.345.696
Total turcent [iabilities 191,930,707 206,097,105 253,821,905
Taotal equity and Habilities 547,596,507 497.464.778 454,271,842
2.1

Summary of significant accounting policies 2.

The accompanving notes are an integral part of the financial stalements.
As per our report of even date

for and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

lFor Madan & Associales DS Digital ™ 1e Limiled

Chartered Acc imants

: ) i
M K Madan . :
Proprietor tor . Director
Membership No.: 082214 ) | PRV DI,

Fr. Nn. : 0001 85N

Mace 1™ wn i
Daiwc :



DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2018

{Amount in Rs.)

. For the year ended For the year ended
Partieulars Notes 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
1 Revenue from Operations 16 218,268,817 290,259,842
11 Other Income 17 1,085,757 646,728
NI Total Income (1411) 219,354,574 290,906,570
IV Expenses
Purchases of Stock m trade 18 34,639,705 117,506,790
(Increase)/decrease in inventories of finished goods and stock in trade 19 3,804,506 (4,809,732)
Employez beneflits expense 20 60,690,521 72,007,050
Selling and distribution expenses 21 54,586,746 46,647,651
Fipance cost 22 24,956,512 19,515,364
Other expenscs 23 46,694,882 64,742,022
Depreciation and amortisation expense 24 53.034,565 49,052,826
Total expenses 278,407 436 364,661,971
¥  Profitfloss) before exeeptional itens and tax (I-T1) (59,052,861) {73,755,401)
v1 Exceptional item - -
VII Profit/(loss) before tax (59,052,861} (73,755,401
VI Tax expense:
Current tax - -
Income tax adjustment related to carlier years - -
Deferred tax (credit) charge (28,679,709) 28,224
Tnotal tax expenses (29,679,709) 28,224
IX Profit (Loss) for the period (29,373,152) (73,783,625)
X Other Comprehensive Income
- Items that will oot be reclassified to profit or loss 24
Re-measurement (gains)losses oo defined benelr plans 28,667 {%1,339)
Tax impact on re-measuremenl {gain) loss on defined benefit plans (7,382) 28,224
X1 Total Comprehensive Income for the period (IX + X)
{Comprising Profit (Loss) and Other Comprehensive Income for the pexfod) (29,351,867) (73,846,740)
X1 Earnings per equity share: 25
(1) Basic (0.85) (2.13)
{2) Diluted (0.85) (2.13)
Summary of significant accounting policies 2.1
The accompanying ootes are an integral part of the financial statements.
As per our report of even date
For Madan & Associates Forandont  Ifof the Board of Directors of
Chartered Aeeountants DS Digila *ivate Limited
- ~ oy
M K Madan \
Proprietor L ector . Dirsctor
Membership No.; 082214 N - DIN:

Fr. No.: 000185N

Place : New Delhi
Date -



DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250
Cash flow statement [or the yvear ended 31 March 2018

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
{Amount in Rs.} {Amount in Rs.)

Cash flow from operating aetivities

Profit before tax (39,052 861) (73.733.401)
Adjusiment to reconcile profit before 1ax to nel cash llows.
Depreciation and amortization expenses 33,034.565 49.052.826
Inlerest expense 24.956.512 19313 364
Provision for Doubitul Debis 10.659.094 10,076.762
Amounts Wrillen oft 366,883 217.334
Loss on Foreign Exchange Fiuctuations (Nel) 1257 891 334511
Fair Value Gawns on Financial Instruments (113.188) (167.935)
Employce Benefil Expenses 28.667 (91.33%)
Other Adjustments 385,337 -
Operating profit before working capital changes 31,723,098 5,382,123
Movemenlis in working ¢apital
{Decreasc)/increase in trade payables (49.018.5213) 87.626.086
Increase in provistons 961.127 1.637.269
{ DeereaseYinerease in other current liabilities {3.394.021 (8.393.293)
Decrease/{increasc) in tradc receivables 13.814.995 (26,267.526)
(Increase)/decrease in mventorjes 3,804 506 (4.809.732)
(Decrease)merease in other current linancial habihities (5.000.542) (5.123.988)
(Increase)/ in Other Nnancial Assels (4.843 399 (3.913,691}
Cash generated from operating activities (11,954,7539) 46,135,247
Direct taxes paid {nct ol refunds)
Net cash Aow from operating activities (A) (11,954,759) 46,135,247
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of fixed assels. ineluding capital wock n progress and ¢apital advances {101,134,935) (68.682.988}
Net cash used in invesiing activities (B) (101.134,935) (68.682,988)
Cash Nows [rom financing activities
Repayinent ¢l long-term borrowings 92.277.738 3.297.988
Repayment of short term borrowings 43072275 (122.004.391)
Issuc of Prelerence Share Capital - 1 60.000.000
Interest paid (24.936,512) (19.513.364)
Net casle (used in)/flow from financing activities (C) 180,393,301 21,778,232
Net ((ecrease)/increase in cash and cash cquivalents (A + B+ C) (2.696.193) (769.509)
Cash and cash equivalents ai the beginning of the year 6,064,001 6.833.510
Cush and cash equivalents at the end of the year 3,367,808 6,004,001
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 14,930 37.275
Balances with banks
- On currenl account 3,352,858 6,026,726
Total cash and cash equivalents (note 16) 3.367.808 6,064,001

Suimmary of signilicant accounting policies

The aceompanying notes are an integral part of the linaneial stateinents.

For Madan & Associales
e cred Acor milants

M I Madan

Proprielor

Membership No.: 082214
FRN _000185N

Place - New Delhi V R
Dﬂte:!“l)oS{lS. | ‘if%

Fur and on behalt of (he Board of Directors of
DS [*gital Pri#zte Limited

D etor, Dhrector 4

DI © . DN



DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: UT2200DLI00RPTCI 73250
Statement of changes in equity for 1he year eaded 3t Masch 1018

A. Equity share capital:

_Equity shares No. ol shares Amount in Rs.
Tssued, subscribed and fully paid up [Share of Rs. 10 ¢cach)
AU April 2016 34,728,920 347,289,200
Increased{decrease) durnmy the year - g
At 3 March 2017 34,723 920 347,289,200
Increase/{decrease} during the year - -
ALJL March 2018 34.728.920 247.289.200
B. Other equity
Reserve & Surplus Equily p of Non
Parliculars Cumutlative Optienally Totzl
General reserve | ESOPS reserve | o yeriible Prefevence Share

Balance as at 1st April 2016 {281,69%,402) - 26,691,493 (261,007,909)
Changes in accounling policy / prior peried eors - - - -
Restated balance a1 the begimning of the reponing period (287,699,402) - 26,691,493 (261,007,909)
Profit for e year (73,782,625) - - (73,783,625)
Chher comprehensive income for the year (63,113) - - {63,115}
Total Comprehensive Income lar the year (73,846,740) - - {71,846,740)
Changes dusing the year - - 160,000,000 160,000,000
Balance as at 3hs1 March, 2017 (361,546,142) - 156,691,493 (L74,854,649)
Changes in accounting policy / prior period errors 383537 - - 585,537
Resiated balance at the beginning of the reporting period (161,546,142) - 136,691,493 (174,854,649
Profit for the year (29,373,152) - - (29,373,152}
Qber comprehensive income for the vear 21,285 - - 21,285
Tolal Comprehensive Income for ihe year {29.331,867) - - {29,351,86T)
Changes during the year

Balance as at 31st March, 2018 (419.664,339) - 186.691.493 (201.620,578)




DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
REGD. OFFICE: 7361, RAVINDRA MANSION, RAM NAGAR, NEW DELHI-110055

1. Company Information

DS digital private Limited (‘the Company’) is a private limited Company incorporated and
domiciled in India and has its registered office at 7361, Ravindra mansion, Ram nagar,
New delhi-110055, India.

The Company is a subsidiary of § Chand company ltd. one of India’s largest and oldest
publishing and education service providers.

DS Digital preduct range comprises of digital classroom, Tablet solution, Hands on lab,
Language tab, Teacher training and Learning centres.

2. Significant Accounting Policies

2.1.1 Statement of Compliance

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with IND AS and Disclosures thereon
comply with requirements of IND AS, stipulations contained in Scheduie- III (revised) as
applicable under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013, Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules 2015 as amended from time to time, other pronouncement of ICAI,
provisions of the Companies Act and Rules and guidelines issued by SEBI as applicable.

Upto financial year ended on 31st March 2017, the company has prepared the accounts
according to the Previous GAAP. The financial staterments for the year ended 31% March,
2018 are the first to have been prepared in accordance with IND AS. Opening balance
sheet as on 1st April 2016 and 31st March 2017 has been presented as comparative. The
transition was carried out retrospectively as on the transition date which is 1st April
2016, and for any variation in the amounts represented in the comparative balance
sheet as on 31% march, 2017, reconciliation is given as part of notes.

All Assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the
Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria set out in revised Schedule - III to
the Companies Act, 2013. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current
assets and liabilities.

Based on the nature of business and their realization in cash and cash equivalents, 12
months has been considered by the Company for the purpose of current/ non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

2.1.2 Basis. of measurement

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention and on an
accrual basis except Income from pre-school educational activity are accounted for on
receipt basis, except for the following material items that have been measured at fair
value as required by relevant Ind AS:
I
a. Certain financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair values (as
required by the relevant Ind AS)

b. Defined benefit and other long term employee benefits and

c. Foreign Commission expenses

7 1

s, '~



2.1.3 Use of significant accounting estimates, judgement and assumptions

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, which are described below, the
directors of the company is required to make judgements estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from
other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the
revision affects both current and future periods.

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

a. The preparation of financial statements involves estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amount of assets, liahilities, disclosure of contingent liabilities
at the date of financiai statements and the reported amount of revenues and
expenses for the reporting period.

b. In case of Property, plant and equipment, the charge in respect of periodic
depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset’'s expected
useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its life. The useful lives
and residual values of company’s assets are determined by management at the
time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each financial
year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well
as anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in
technology.

c. Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using
the currency of the primary economic environment in which this entity operate
{(i.e. the “functional currency”). The financial statements are presented in Indian
Rupee, the national currency of India, which is the functional currency of the
Company.

d. Provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when it becomes probable
that there will be a future outflow of funds resulting. from past operations or
events and the amount of cash outflow can be reliably estimated. The timing of
recognition and. quantification of the liability requires the application: of judgement
to existing facts and circumstances, which can be subject to change. The carrying
amounts of provisions and. liabilities are reviewed regularly and revised to take
account of changing facts and circumstances.

e. Management judgement is required for estimating the possible outflow of
resources, if any, in respect of contingencies/ claim / litigations against the
Company as it is not possibie to predict the outcome of pending matters with
accuracy.

f. The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan / other long term henefits and the
present value of the gratuity obligation / other long term benefits are determined
using actuarial wvaluations. An actuarial vailuation involves making various
assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These
include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and
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mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its fong-
term nature, a defined benefit obligation / other long term benefits is highly
sensitive to changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each
reporting date.

2.1.4 First time adoption of IND AS

a) Being first time adoption of IND AS, the company has availed the following
exemptions as granted under Appendix C & D of IND AS 101:-

i. Carrying values for all of its Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible
assefs as at the date of transition to IND AS, measured as per previous
GAAP have been treated as their deemed costs as at the date of
transition.

ii. Cumulative translation differences on foreign operations: Cumulative
currency translation differences for all foreign operations are deemed
to be zero as at 1 April 2016.

iii. Impairment of financial assets: The Company has applied the impairment
requirements of Ind AS 109 retrospectively; however, as permitted by
Ind AS 101, it has used reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort to determine the credit risk at
the date that financial instruments were initially recognised in order to
compare it with the credit risk at the transition date. Further, the
Company has not undertaken an exhaustive search for information
when determining, at the date of transition to Ind ASs, whether there
have been significant increases in credit risk since initial recognition, as
permitted by Ind AS 101,

b) Retrospective impacts of transition from previous GAAP to IND AS on assets
and liabilities have been adjusted against “Other Equity” on 1st April 2016.

2.2 Property, Plants and Equipments

These tangible assets are held for use in supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. These are recognized and carried under cost model i.e. cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment loss, if any which is akin to recogaiticn criteria under
erstwhile GAAP.

a)

b)

For transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with the cariying
value of all of its property, plant and equipment recegnised as of April 01, 2016
measured: as per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its- deemed.
cost as of the transition date.

Subsequent to transition date, property, plant and equipment are stated at cost
of acquisition less accumulated depreciation and. accumulated impairment losses,
if any. Cost includes freight, duties, taxes and other expenses directly incidental
to acquisition, bringing the asset to the location and installation including: site
restoration up to the time when the asset is ready for intended use. Such. Costs
also include Borrowing Cost if the recognition criteria are met.

When a major inspection/repair occurs, its cost is recognized in the carrying
amount of the plant and equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria

A



2.3

d)

f)

are satisfied. Any remaining carrying amount of the cost of previous
inspecticn/repair is derecognized.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

i. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment (other than freehold fand
and capital work in progress) Is provided on straight line over the useful
life of the relevant assets net of residual value whose life is in consonance
with the life mentioned in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013 except
in the case of computer or peripherals where useful life is estimated six
years based upon post experience in providing hardware to schools.

ii. In the case of assets purchased, sold or discarded during the vyear,
depreciation on such assets is calculated on pro-rata basis from the date
of such addition or as the case may be, upto the date on which such asset
has been sold or discarded.

jii. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property,
plant and equipment are reviewed at each balance sheet date and in case
of any changes, effect of the same is given prospectively.

Components relevant to fixed assets, where significant, are separately
depreciated on SLM basis in terms of their rate specified in the schedule II of the
companies act, 2013,

During sales of fixed assets any profit earned / loss sustained towards excess /
shortfall of sale value vis-a-vis carrying cost of assets is accounted for in
statement of profit & loss.

Intangible Assets

a)

b)

d)

For transition to Ind AS, the company has elected to continue with the carrying
value of all of its intangible assets recognised as of April 01, 2016 measured as
per the previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the
transition date.

Subsequent to transition date, Intangible Assets are stated at cost of acquisition
net of recoverable taxes, trade discount and rebates less accumulated
amortisation and impairment loss, if any. Such cost includes purchase price,
borrowing costs, and any cost directly attributable to bringing the asset to its
working condition for the intended use, net charges on foreign. exchange
contracts and adjustments. arising from exchange rate variations. attributable to
the intangible assets.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the entity and the cost can be
measured reliably

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying. amount of the
asset and are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss when the asset is
derecognised.

Intangible assets are amortised on a straight line basis over their estimated
useful live. The amortization period and ' e amortization method are reviewed at



least at each financial year end. If the expected useful life of the asset is
significantly different from previous estimates, the amortisation period is changed
accordingly,

f) In case the assets are internally generated/upgraded then at capitalized
development cost subject to satisfaction of criteria of recognition (identify, control
and future economic benefit) laid down from clause 11 to 17 of IND AS 38.

Folfowing initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost (including direct
cost and salary of employees plus administrative expenses & rent} less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment loss. Research costs are
recognized as expense in the period in which it is incurred.

2.4 Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication
that an asset (tangible and intangible) may be impaired. For the purpose of
assessing Impairment, the smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash
inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets, is considered as a cash generating unit. If any such
indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the asset/cash
generating unit is made. Assets whose carrying value exceeds their recoverable
amount are written down to the recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is higher
of an asset’s or cash generating unit’s net selling price and its value in use. Value in
use is the present value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from the
continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the end of its useful life.
Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any
indication that an Impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting
periods may no longer exist or may have decreased.

2.5 Financial instruments
I) Financial assets
Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of
financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs
that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as financial assets measured
at fair value or as financial assets measured at amortized cost.

Subsequent Measurement

For purpose of subsequent measurement financial assets are classified in two
broad categories:-

* Financial Assets at fair value
* Financial assets at amortized cost

Where assets are measured at fair value, gains and. losses are either recognized
entirely in the statement of profit and loss, or recognized in other comprehensive
income.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at
amortized cost. .
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¢ Business Model Test: The objective of the company's business model is to
hold the financial asset to collect the contractual cash flows.

» Cash flow characteristics Test: The contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

A financial asset that meets the following two conditions is measured at fair value
through QOCI:-

» Business Model Test: The financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets.

¢ Cash flow characteristics Test: The contractual terms of the financial asset
give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payment of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are measured at fair value through profit and loss.

All equity investments are measured at fair value in the balance sheet, with value
changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except for those eguity
investments for which the entity has elected irrevocable option to present value
changes in OCI.

Impairment of financial assets:-

The company assesses impairment based on expected credit losses (ECL} model
at an amount equal to:-

e 12 months expected credit losses, or
» Lifetime expected credit losses

Depending upon whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition,

However, for trade receivables, the company does not track the changes in credit
risk. Rather, it recognizes impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at

each reporting date, right from its Initial recognition.
IT) Financial Liabilities

All financial liabilities are initially recognized: at fair value and, in the case of loans
and borrowings and: payabies, net of directly attributable transaction. costs.

Financial liabilities. are classifled as measured at amortized cost or fair value
through profit and! loss (FMTPL). A financial liability is classified as FWTPL if it is.
classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial Liabilities at FYTPL are measured at fair value and net gain
or losses, including any interest expense, are recognised in statement of profit
and loss. Other financial liahilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method. Interest expeise and foreign exchange gains
and losses are recognised in statement of profit and loss. Any gain or loss on de-
recognition is also recognized in statement of profit and loss.

A



2.6 Revenue Recognition

Sales have been recognized with the transfer of significant risk and rewards of
ownership of the goods, with the company losing effective control or the right to
managerial involverment thereon and the revenue (representing future economic
benefit associated with the transaction) including cost incurred or to be incurred in
respect of the transaction are measurable reliably and the recovery of the
consideration is probable, '

Income from Customised Interactive Content is recognised on completion of Initial
training at the school premises in case of Domestic schools and on the basis of
installation of software in International schools. Income from export customised
interactive education services is accounted on invoice raised. '

Sales are measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable. Saies
recognized are net of Goods and Services Tax, Sales tax, service tax, VAT

intermediary sales, rebates and discount.

Incentives on exports related to operations as provided by government are
recognized in books after due consideration of certainty of utilization / receipt of

such incentives

Interest Income from a financial asset is recognised using effective interest method.

Other Incomes have been recognized on accrual basis in financial statements except
for cash flow information.

2.7 Employee Benefits
Liabilities in respect of employee benefits to employees are provided for as follows:

a) Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months after the end of the
reporting period are classified as short term employee benefits and they are
recognised as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the statement of profit
and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

b} Post-employment benefits
i} Defined Contribution Plan

The defined: contribution. plan is post-employment benefit plan under which:
the Company contributes fixed eontribution:to a government ad ministered
fund and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further
contribution. The Company's defined contribution plan comprises of
Provident Fund and Employee State Insurance Scheme. The Company's
contribution to defined contribution plans are recognised in the statement
of profit and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related
sarvices, '

iy Deftned benefit plan

The Company pays gratuity to the employees whoever has completed five
years of service with the Corppany at the time of
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2.8

resignation/superannuation. The gratuity is paid @15 days salary for every
completed year of service as per the Payment of Gratuity Act 1972.

The liability in respect of gratuity and other post-employment benefits is
calculated using the Projected Unit Credit Method and spread over the
period during which the benefit is expected to be derived from employees’
services

Actuarial gain / toss and other components of re-measurement of net
defined benefit liability (asset) are accounted for as OCI. All remaining
components of costs are accounted for in statement of profit & loss.

iil)Other long-term benefits

The Company has other long-term benefits in the form of leave benefits.
The present value of the other long term employee benefits is determined
based on actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method. The
rate used to discount defined benefit obligation is determined by reference
to market yields at the Balance Sheet date on Indian Government Bonds
for the estimated term of obligations. Actuarial gains or losses arising on
account of experience adjustment and the effect of changes in actuarial
assumptions are recognised immediately in the statement of profit and loss
as income or expense. Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of
other long-term benefits are recognised when the curtailment or settlement
OCCUrs.

Actuarial gain / loss and other components of re-measurement of net
defined benefit liability (asset) are accounted for as OCI. All remaining
components of costs are accounted for In statement of profit & loss.

Tax Expenses

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss, except to the extent that It relates to
items recognised in the compréehensive income or in equity. In which case, the tax is
also recognised in other comprehensive incorme or equity.

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on tax rates and laws that
are enacted or substantively enacted at the Balance sheet date.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognized using the balance sheet approach. Deferred tax assets
and. liabilities: are recognized for deductible and taxable temporary differences
arising between the tax base of assets and liabilities and: their carrying. amount in
financial statements.

Deferred tax asset are recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which such deferred tax assets can be realised. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and. reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to
allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for alt taxable temporary differences.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax
rates fand tax laws) that have heen =anacted or substantively enacted at the

reporting date.
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Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to set off assets against liabilities representing current tax and
where the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to taxes on
income ievied by the same governing taxation laws.

Foreign commission expenses

The company has obligation to pay commission in foreign currency in respect of
export services on the basis of actual receipt from the schools,

2.10 Foreign Currency Translation

2,11

2.12

i) Functional currenéy
The company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the
company’s functional currency.

ii) Initial Recognition
Transactions in foreign currencies are recognized at rate of overseas currency
ruling on the date of transactions. Gain / Loss arising on account of rise or fall in
overseas currencies vis-a-vis functional currency between the date of transaction
and that of payment is charged to Statement of Profit & Loss.

iif) Subsequent Recognition
Monetary Assets in foreign currencies are translated into functlonal currency at
the exchange rate ruling at the Reporting Date and the resultant gain or loss, is
accounted for in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Non-Monetary items which are carried at historical cost denominated in a foreign
currency are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

iv) Impact of exchange fluctuation is separately disclosed in notes to accounts.

Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the period
attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average number of equity
shares outstanding during the period.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit for the
pericd attributed to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential
equity shares.

Borrowing; Cost

Borrowing cost that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction, or
production of a qualifying asset are capitalized: as a part of the cost of such asset till
such:time the asset is ready for its.intended use or sale.

Borrowing: cost consists of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Berrowing costs also includes exchange differences to the extent regarded as an
adjustment to the borrowing costs.

A qualifying asset is an asset that necessarily requires a substantial pericd of time to
get ready for its intended use or sale. Afl other berrowing cost are recognized as
expense in :he period in which they are incurred.

VI



2.13

2.14

2.15

2.16

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with financial institutions,
other short term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months
or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject
to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Inventories

Iterns of inventories are measured at lower of cost or net realisable value after
providing for obsolescence, if any. Cost of inventories comprises of cost of purchase
and other costs incurred in bringing them to their respective present location and
condition. Cost for the purpose of valuation of Inventory is determined in
accordance with the method prescribed by the IND AS-2 on 'Valuation of
Inventories'.

Provisions and Contingencies

Provisions: Provisions are recognised when there is a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and there is a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation. Provisions are measured at the
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the
Balance sheet date and are discounted to its present value as appropriate.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be
derived by the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of
meeting the future obligations under the contract. Provisions for onerous contracts
are measured at the present value of lower of the expected net cost of fulfilling the
contract and the expected cost of terminating the contract.

Contingent Liabilities: Contingent liabilities are disclosed when there is a possible
obligation arising from past events, the existence of which will be confirmed only by
the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly
within the control of the company or a present obligation that arises from past
events where it is either not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot be made, is termed as a
contingent liability.

Contingent Assets are neither recognised nor disclosed.
Provisions and contingent liabilities are reviewed at each Balance sheet date.

Lease

As a lessee:

Leases under which the Company assumes substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership are cfassified as finance leases. When acquired, such assets are
capitalized at fair value or present value of the minimum lease payments at the
inception of the lease, whichever is [ower,

Lease payments under operating leases are recognised as an expense on a straight

line basis in the statement of profit and loss over the lease term except where the
lease payments are structured to increase in line with expected general inflation.



DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LINITED
CIN; U72200DL2008PTC173250
Notes to financial statement as a1 31 March 2018

3, Property, plani and equipment

{Amouni in )

Parliculars Ful:nlture & O_I'Hce Cuml_)u(ers & Vebicles Plant & Total
Fiztures Equipment _Pheripherals Equipment
Cost
Asat ] April 2016 8,937,463 2,071,117 78,394,166 405,016 1,112,872 90,920,633
Additions 368,543 194,550 25,646,227 - - 26209320
Disposals - - - - - -
Asat 31 March 2017 9,306,006 2,265,667 104,040,393 405,016 1,112,872 117,129,953
Additions 1,228,942 547,144 54,019,088 3,900 B 55,799,074
Disposals - - - - - -
Asat 31 March 2018 10,534,948 2,812,811 158,059,481 408,916 1,112,872 172,929,027
Accumulated depreciation
As ket 1 April 2016 - - - - - -
Charge for the year 1,620,260 569,025 24,080,138 43,645 102,545 26,415,614
Deductions - - - - - -
Asat 31 March 2017 1,620,260 569,025 24,080,138 43,645 102,545 26,415,614
Charge for the year 1,883,044 694,330 25,124,883 33,007 103,607 27,838,961
Deductions - - - - - -
As at 31 Macch 2018 3,503,304 1,263,355 49,205,021 76,742 206,152 54,254,575
Net block
As at 1 April 2016 8,937,463 2,071,117 78,394,166 405,016 1,112,872 90,920,633
Asat 31 March 2017 7,685,745 1,696,642 79,960,255 361,371 1.010.327 90,714,34)
As at 31 March 2018 7,031,643 1,549,456 108,854,460 332,174 906,720 118,674,453
Nole: Deemed cost ag at April 1, 2016 is calculated as shown below:
. Furaiture & Office Computers & . Plant &
Particutars hi Total
ante Fixtures Equipment Pheripherals Vehicles Equipment
Gross block 13,331,289 3,899 968 160,056,546 $00,764 1,522,473 179,711,069
Accumulated depreciation 4,393,827 1,828,851 81,662,380 495778 409,600 88,790,436
Deemed Cost as at I April 2016 8,937,463 2,071,117 78,394,166 405,016 1,112,872 90,920,633
4. Jatangible assets
i Intangible Assets Learniog Computer
Pariicul Total
arieutars vnder Development Content Seftware o
Grosa block
Asat 1 April 2016 19,026,615 125,333,960 2,142928 146,503,503
Purchases/inlernal developmeot 40,591,697 41,233,590 504,000 82,329,287
Disposaly/Transferred to Block (41,233.591) - - (41,233,591)
As at 31 March 2017 18380,21 166,567,550 2,646,928 187,599,199
Purchasesf/internal developmerst {Refer Note 4.1) 47,011,479 42,108,653 - 89,120,132
Disposals/Transferred to Block (42,108,648} - - (42,108,648}
As at 31 March 2018 23,287,551 208,676,203 2,646,928 234,610,683
Aecumulated depreciation
AsatlAprit2016 - - -
Anortization for the year 22072213 565,000 22,637213
Deductions - - -
Asg at 31 March 2017 22,072.213 565,000 22,637213
Amortzzation for the year 24,709,570 486,034 25,195,604
Deductions - - -
As at 31 Mareh 2018 46,781,762 1,051,034 47.832,416
Net block
Asatl April 2016 19,026,615 125,333,960 2,142,928 146,503,503
As at 31 Mareh 2017 18,384,721 144,495,338 2,081,928 164,961 987
As a1 31 March 2018 23.287.551 161,894,421 1,595,894 186,777,866
Note: Deemed cost as at April 1, 2016 is calculated as shown helows:
Farticulars Learning Cor.npul.er Toral
Cuntent Sollware
Gross bleck 220.524,37 37187758 224743 349
Accwnulated desreciation 95 190,61 575,850 766 46
Deened Crist as at ] April 2016 125,333,960 2,142,928 27,176,988
4.1 Inangible Assers under Dex entincludes Rs. 212,88 574/ [PY s ] 63,61 077/ on account of cimnio e benefls ~ununees i year
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DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200D1.2008PTC173250
Notes to financial statement as at 31 March 2018

5. Financial Assets

5A. Trade receivables

(Amount in Rs.)

Particula As at Asat As at
A 31 March2018 31 March 2017 1 Aprit 2016
Trade recetvables
Unsecured, considered good * 82,476,421 108,575,283 93,136,366
Doubiful 44,320,452 45,316 906 37,963.287
126,796,873 153,892.190 131,099,653
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss
Doubtful (44,320.452) (45.316,906) (37.963.287)
(44,320,452) (45,316,906) (37,963,287
Net Trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good 82,476,421 108,575 283 93,136,366
Doubtful - - -
82,476,421 108,575,283 93,136,366
Current 82,476,421 108,575,283 93,136,366

Nen-Current

* Tu absence of confirmations censidered good by the Management.

Till 31st March 2017 company used to provide 25% of Domestic outstanding for mare than one year.
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DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250
Notes to financial statement as at 31 March 2018

SC. Loans
Amount in Rs.)
Particulars As at As al As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Secunity deposils - Non Current 3.297.168 3,275,796 1,137,392
Security deposits - Current 322,111 587,173 363,612
Total Loans and Advances 3.619.27% 1,862,969 1,501,004
Curreat 322,011 587,173 363,512
Non-Current 3.297,168 1,275,796 1,137,392
Unsecured, considered good 3,61927% 1,862,969 1,501,004
Unsecured, considered doubtful - -
3619279 1,862,969 1,501,004
Less: Allowance for expected credit loss - - -
3.619.279 1,862,969 1,501,004
5D. Cash and cash equivalents
{Amountin Rs.}
Particulars As at As al As at
" 31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017 1 April 2016
Balances with banks
- In current accounts 3,352,858 6,026,726 6,793,982
Cash in hand 14,950 37.275 39.529
Total Cash and cash equivalents 3,367,808 6,064,001 6,833,510
Curreot 3367308 6,064,001 6,833,510
Non-Current - - -
6. laventories .
{Amountin Rs.)
. Asnt As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 Aprit 2016
Raw materials . - -
Work in progress - - -
Stock-m-Trade (As taker, valued and certificd by management) 3767212 7.571,718 2,761,986
3,767,212 7,571,718 2,761,986
Less : Provision for slow & non moving stock - - -
Total Inventories 3.767.212 7,571,718 2,761,986
p g
Sy



DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250
Nates Lo financial statement as 2331 March 2018

7.

7B.

7C.

Other Assets

Prepaid expenses
(Amount in Rs.}

Farticulary As at Asat As al
31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017 1 April 2016
Prepaid expenses (Non current) 685,327 613.697 88,111
Prepaid expenses (Current} 4142621 2249408 711,303
Total Prepaid expenses 4,827,948 2,863,105 1,399,414
Other asseis
(Amount in Rs.}
Particulars Asal As sl Asat
31 March 2018 31 Mareh 2017 1 Aprl 2016
Deposit with government authority (Refer Note 7C.1) 1,100,000 1,100,000 1,100,000
Advance Taxes, TDS & Other Receivable (Refer Nole 7C. 2} 10,799,790 6,863,074 8,047,188
VAT - 1,883,244 149,161
Service Tax/GST 1,785,130 258,895 76,025
Advance 10 Suppliers 492,169 1,829,921 2,656,792
Advance to employees Lmprest 2,761,985 1,456,645 1,414,503
Stipend Advanee - 2309360 -
Total Other nasets 15,839,073 15,701,639 13,443,669
Current 19,981,654 16,851,048 13,054,973
Non-Current 1,785.327 1,713,697 1,788,111

7C.1. Ineludes Rs. 11 Lacs paid towards levy of penalty of Rs 27 50 Lacs under UPVAT ael.
7C.2. Includes Rs 67.20 Lacs lowards export incentive seceivable. Licences for FY 2016-17 and FY 201 7-18 pending to be received. Exciudes Rs 3 95 Lacs TDS

receivable pending identification.

Delerred taxes

(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Asat Asat As at

31 Mareh 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Iterns leading to creation of deferred tax assets
lmpaet of expenditure charged to the stalement of profit and loss gecount in the curTent 122,190,308 122,150,308 122,150,308
year but allowed for tax purposes on payment basis m subsequenl vears
Others - -
Lmpact of Ind AS adjnstments . 29672328 - -
Total deferred tax assets 151,862,636 122,190308 122.190308
Items leading to creation of deferred tax [iabllities
Fixed assets, impact of differences between tax depreciation and depreeiation/ 24,716,189 24,716,189 24,716,189
amortization charged in the financial stalemenls
Impact of Ind AS adustments - - -
Total deferred tax liabilities 24,716,189 24.716,189 24,716,189
Net deferred tax assets/(fiabilities} 127,146,447 97.474319 97.474.119

B.1. In view of pending merger of company with § Chand & Company Lid and virtual probability of eamning temporary tax differences i future, deferred tax asset has

bezn created
/

\



DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: UTZ20DL2003PTC I 73230
Nates to nanclal stalemenl as at 1 Barch 2018

9. Share Capliat
¢Amoual §n Ry

FPartlulars Ay at Asst A at
31 March 2018 AL March 2017 LAndl 2016

Autborised

AT000,000 (31 harch 2017: 3.70,50.000) sauier shares o Rs 1 cich 370,000,000 TH.000.000 370.060.000

Lusued, subscribed and Tully pald up

14723920 (3) March 2007 JA728.920) cawiry sharea of Rs 10/- gach 247,239 200 AT 280.200 17.389.200

228920 H7.299.200 M7 259,200

& Re liatien of Lthe shares oyixtanding at Ihe bepinalng sad at the end af the reponing year

Equitv shares HNumbers Amount In Rs.

Lusued, Jubscribed wod fully pald up

As sl Apdl 2056 28920 IR 00

Increase!{ Decrense) during e veor - ~

A 3131 March 2017 3.726.920 T.TE200

Tncrewsed| Decreass) during the year - -

As 2131 March 1018 H, 75520 T I85,200

b. Terma! vighis sitached lo eauiny shares

The Comparny bas only one claxss of cquity sheves and une class of Preference shwres having a par muhee of Rs. 0/ per shure  Each holder of equity shared is entitled t one voie per
sbare. [ the event of Liquidativn of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entiled 1o roonve remaining assets of the Company, wfter distrivution of all preferantial
emounts. The distribetion will T o fropomicn (o the ourmber of equity shares beld by the shareholders

& Shares beld by holding cooipany and Wheir subsldlaries

31 March 2618 3 March 2017 L Apdl 2016
_{Rs) (Rs) ()
5 Chand ard Campory Limited (fonmerly 5 Chand and Company Privaie Limited) 176,857,300 176867500 176867500
170.171.650 170.171.650 17,171.65¢

Saari Digilal Edueion Ininatives Pwt Lid

A, Detally of shareholders hoddlay prore than 5% eanity shares In the Company; Mo of shares held % of bolding
§ Chumd asd Comasany Lid 17.685.750 50.93%
17.017.183 49 Do

Saferi Digtwal Educarion Inutiatives Pyt Lid.

12, Qther Equity
(Ameani fn Rs.)

Parrculary Azl As af Asal

3) March 2018 31 March 2017 st Aoril. 2016

Reulned eamieg

Balunee a5 he Bewinning of Teporing period (361.546.141) {227,699 402} (287 69%.402)
Add Burplus during fhe yer (29372.152) (73,787 825) -
Add Orher Camprehensive income 21285 (63,115} -
Add Prior Pariod Enurs 535537

Balanee m the ¢nd of repariing pestod (A} @YONZ I (351_516,142) (ZBT.699.303)
Equley comporeat of preference shares

Equicy component (1 Preference shanes) 26691493 26,691,493 26,691.4%)
Eondity componant (T Preforence thares) 160,000 060 160,000.000

Bakanre s 1be eod of reparring pectod (B) 186.69149) 156691493 26,691,493

Total (A+B) 200,630,977} {174 BSH. 649} (261,007 3y




1 Preference sharey

Conipany ofered and issued 61,70.400 1% oplionally convertible pon-cumidative Preferante Shares (“OCNCPS™) of Rs. 10 cich Lo Safari Digual Education Enitiatiees Privaie Limiled
(“Sfari Drgital” or the “Holder™) m3 por special resolution passed on 24th March, 2016, Sefari Digital &5 wholly owned subsidiary of § Chand & Company Private Lupited

Convertible Preierence share shalt have prefereniual right vis-a-vis Equity Share of the Cempiry with revpeet o paymznt of dividend and mpgment in case of a windng oper
repasment of capital,

Cenvertible Prefirence share ahall have ron- cumednnve amd non-sarteinating i swshug fund

Converuble Prefirence share shatl have oplionally converlible inlo oquity shares of the Company afler a peried of ? years Lrom Lhe date of sue &1 Ure oplion of the Safan Digital
Eduzation [mbatives Private Limijod

Converible Preferenoe share Shall carrv voting rights as oot the provisions of Section 47121 of the Act,

Aller 5 vears, if nod converied ito Eauits Sharcs v i Holder then ot shalt be mandatorii re-decmid

L% optionully convertible non-cumulaive Prefereace Shares

As st a

Fartlcular 305t March2018 3l Morch 3017 1t April.2016

As per 1ot Balanee Shoct 61.704.000 61.704.000 £1.704.000
Chontes during the year N - -
Balance af end of year S1.704.000.60 61,704.000 £1,704 000
The reconciliallon of the aninber of shaves ling is ser out below:

Asat As a2t Asat

Partieslacy Jst MarchJ0I8 3Ll March 2007 13] Aprl2036

Prefenee shares at te beginnmg of the year 6170400 6,170,400 4,170,460
Add, Lssue of Sharss - - -
Preference shares ef the end of the year £,170,400.00 £,170.400.00 6,170,400 00
The details of shareholders boMing more than 5% share In the Company ncluding thoye held by holding company and Subsldlaries of holding ompany:

Asae As al Asal
Hame of Sharcholdary 3Jist March2818 315t MarchMT 13t April3016
Salan Digitl Education Iniliatives Private Limited N 6.170400 6.170.400 6.170.400
(100 % skareholding) -

6.170,400.00 6,170,400, 0% 6,170.400.00
0O Preference shares
Company olYeredt and sssucd 1,60,00,000 1% oplional bl Jalive Preference Shares (“OCNCPS”) of Rs. 10 cach as per special resolution 315t August, 2016. Safari

Digilel is wholly owned subsidiary of 5 Chand & Comprmy Privale Limited
Conwertible Preference share shall have preforeminl right vis~p-vis Equily Share of the Company with respect 1o payment of dividend x0d repayment in case of 3 winding gp or
repaymant of capilal

Converuble Preforanct share shall have pon- eamulative 2nd noo-participating in surplus fund
Conwertible Prefigence share shall have epticnally convertble inta equity shares af’ the Company aller a pened of 2 years from e date of issue at the opuon of e DS Digital Pivals

Lamited
Comrvarlible Preferancg share Shall cary voting righis s pef Uhe provisions of Settion 47(2) of the sy,
Afler 5 years, il not convertod into Equity Sharss by the Holder than i shall be mandatonily re-desmed,

Asat Asat As at

1% oo} : Latl

g comvertible Prefereare Shares 31 March 2013 JistMarch037 sl AprL2016
Az per last Balanee Sherd 160,000,000 - -
Changes during Whe year = 160,000,000 =
Balanee at end of yeor 160.000.0C0 150,000, (00 =
The recancliation of the pumber of sharey by sct gut Delar:

Parilculars As ar Asal Ay at
31 st March.2018 315t March,2017 1t April 2016

Prefereticr shares at the beginnng of the veor 16,000,000 14.000.000
Add: ssue of Shares - . -
Prefaenss shares ot G end of e Yeiur 16,006,600 16,000.08) -
The detalls of shareholders boldin: more than sharey n the Company Including those held by bolding company and Subndiades of holdlep cempant:

. Asal A at Asal
Hame of Sharvholders ot March2018  JtsiMarch2017  1st AprilI016
S Chand & company lud 15,000.060 16.000.000 -
{100 % sharchalding)

16,006 150 16 070000

: J" /ﬂ,‘,,h

-



DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC 173250
Notes to financial statcment as st 31 March 2018

11. Berrowings

11A. Non-current borrowings
{(Amount in Rs.}

Particulars As at As at As at
artiewars 31 March2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016

Securcd Loans
Indian rupee loan from others (Siemens Financial Services Pvi Ltd)  {Refere Note No 11A. 1} 36,150,585 23,186,122 27,973,366
Unsecured Loans
Preference Shares - Liability component 49,190,051 43.919,688 39,214,008
Loan from related party 3

- Safani Digital Education Initiatives Pvt. Ltd. (Refer Note Na | 1A.2) 61,458,279 62,169,479 56,820,679

- S Chand & Company Limited (Refer Note No 11A.3) 43,636,602 - -

- Eurasia Publishing House Pvt. Ltd. (Refer Notec No [1A.4) 5,266,395 -

- Nirja Publishers and Printers Pvi. Lid. (Refer Note No 11A.5) 26,105,471
Total Non-current borrowings 221,807,383 129,275,289 124,008,053
Less : Current Maturities of long Term Borrowings 15,229,638 14,975,286 13,006,045
Total Non-current borrowings 206,577,745 114,300,003 111,002,008
Secured 36,150,585 23,186,122 27,973,366
Unsecured 170,427,160 91,113,881 83,028,642

11A.1. Secured loans are charged against the Movable Fixed Assets of the Company.

11A.2. Includes Interest Bearing Loan for Rs 5,36,00,000/- (Previous Period - 5,36,00,000/-) and interest accrued of Rs. 78,58,279/- (Previous Period 85,69,479/-).
11A.3. Optionally Convertible Loan amount Rs. 4,25,53,450/- (PY Rs NIL/-) & Interest accrued Rs.10,83.152/- (PY Rs.NIL/-)

11A.4. Optionally Convertible Loan amount Rs. 50,00,000/- (PY Rs NIL/-) & Interest accrued Rs.2,66,395/- (PY Rs.NIL/-)

1 LA 5. Optionally Convertible Loan amount Rs. 2,50,00,000/- (PY Rs NiIL/-) & Interest accnied Rs.11.05,471/- (PY Rs.NIL/-)




DSDIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200D1L.2008PTC173250
Notes to linancial statement as at 31 March 2018

11B. Current borrowings

_ (AmountiaRs)
Particulars As at As at Asat
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Scecured:
Cash eredit from banks - (Refer Note 118.1)
Yes Bank Ltd/Standard Chartered Bank 49,233,499 22,204,920 15,363,687
Unsecured :
Loans from related parties-
Safari Digital Education Initiatives Pvt Ltd 1,972,396 5,780,632 8,218,700
$ Chand & Co. Ltd (Running aceount) 30,329,047 18,036,745 149,123,115
Blackie & Sons (Calcutta) Pvt Lid 7,305,278 - -
Total 88,840,220 46,022,297 172,705,502
Sceured 49,233,499 22,204,920 15,363,687
Uasecured 39,606,721 23,817,377 157,341,815

11B.1. Exclusive charge on entire current assets and movable fixed assels (excepl assets which are exclusively charged under equiproent financing).

12. Trade payables
{Amount in Rs.)

Particulars Asat As at As at

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Non-Current
Trade payables other than micro enterprises and small enterprises - - -
Current
Total outstanding dues of micre enterprises and small enterprises: and - - -
Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterrprises & small
enterprises 67,985,625 117,004,148 29,378,062
Total Trade payables 67,985,625 117,004,148 29,378,062
Current 67,985,625 117,004,148 29,378,062

Non-Current - -

. ( o S



DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: UT2200D1.2008PTC173250
Notes to Mnancial staterment as at 31 March 2018

13 Other financial liabilities
(Amount in Rs.)

. Asat Asat As at
Particulars R
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 T April 2016

Expenses Payables 5,495,772 6,783,225 3,457,830
Employee salary Payable 3,871,980 7,090,267 5,101,513
Current maiurities of long-term Borrowings 15,229,638 14,975,286 10,296,473
Other financial liabilities (Employees Imprest) 2,069,106 2,567,908 13,006,045
Total other finaocial liabitities 26,670,496 31,416,686 31,861,861
Current 26,670,496 31,416,686 31,861,861

Non current ' -

14 Provisions
{(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As at As at As at
31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April 2016
Provision for retirement benefits
Gratuity 3,233,755 2,781,033 1,917,455
Leave Encashmcnt 3,047,850 2,560,815 1,760,998
Bonus 829,125 807,755 833,881
Total Provisions 7,110,730 6,149,603 4,512,334
Current 1,690,898 1,516,484 1,345,696
Noo current 5,419,832 4,633,119 3,166,638

15 Other liabilities
(Amount in Rs.)

Particulars As at As at Asat

31 March 2018 31 March 2017 1 April2016
Other payables:
Statutory dues - Employees benefits 2,329,954 4675817 7,406,544
Advance from customers (as eertified by management) 4,413,514 5,461,673 4,775,581
Defered Revenue- Billing - - 6,348,659
Total Other liabilities 6,743,468 10,137,489 18,530,784
Current 6,743,468 10,137,489 18,530,784
Non current - - -

g .
. o



DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200D12008PTC173250
. Notes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

16.

17,

17.1

17.2

Revenue From Qperations

(Amount in ¥)

Particulars

For the year cnded
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Sale of produets
Finished goods

Sale of services (Refer Note 16.1)
Other Operating Revenucs
Export Incentive

Total revenue from operations

Detail of sale of services

Domestic

Customized Interactive Education Services
Eureka Science Labs

Income From Pre Schoot Educational Activity

Export
Customised Interactive Education Services

38,412,674 131,266,158
176,053,848 153,977,845
3,802,295 5,015,839
218,268,817 290,259,842
105,560,343 81,097,155
; 52,174
15,659,156 13,450,409
54,834,349 59,378,107
176,053,848 153,977,845

16.1 Includes Rs 80.75 Lacs [PY Rs. 51.30 Lacs] pertaining to the period of April and May 2018,

Other Tncomes

Finance Income

(Amount in )

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Interest income -

- on fixed deposits

-on income tax refund
Interest income on fair valuation of security deposit
Total finance income

2,733 -

3 407,320
113,188 167,935
115,921 575,135

Qther Income
{Amount in ¥),
. For the year ended For the year ended
Particulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Profit on Sale of fixed assets - 20,000
Other Income {on settiement with receivables) 969,836 51,473
Total other incoioe 969,836 71,473




DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTCI73250

Notes to financial statements [or the year ended 31 March 2018

18.

19.

20.

21

22.

Purchase & implementation cost

(Amount in T

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particalars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Computer & Peripherals 33,519,705 116,763,181
E Books - 124 983
Science Labs (Kit) - 304,916
English Labs (Kit) 1,120,000 313,710
Total Purchase & implementation cost 34,639,705 117,506,790
(Increase)/Decrease io Inveotories

(Amount in T)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Inventories at the beginaing of the year
Trade Ttems

Inventories at the end of the year
Trade Ttems

(Inerease)/decrease in inventorics

Employee Bencfifs Expenses

7,571,718 2,761,986
3,767,212 7,571,718
3,804,506 (4,809,732)

(Amount in ¥}

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Salanies, Wages, Allowances
Provident Fund & ESI

Staff Welfare and Medical insurance
Gratuity '

Leave encashment

Bonuns and Exgratia

Cther Benefits to Staff

Total employee benefits expenses

Selling and Distribution Expenses

51,928,911 59,434 838
3,682,342 2,208,733
1,252,562 1,367,343

997,264 318,393
1,085,760 1,006,988
1,056,430 902,976

637,252 6,267,779

60,690,521 72,007,050

(Amount in T)

Particulars

For the year ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Advertisernent and conference expenses
Travelling and boarding expenses

Freight, cartrage and installation expenses
Marketing & commission expenses
Business promotion

Tolal selling and distribution expenses

Finance Cost

3,387,558 5,004,626
20,516,516 24,193,535
3,030,532 5,120,521
27,453,393 12,026,407
198,747 302,562
54,586,746

46,647,651

{Amount in¥)

Partieulnrs

For the yvear ended
31 March 2018

For the year ended
31 March 2017

Inlerest Expense
Notional [nierest on Loan
Bank Charges

‘Untal finance eost

18,780,969 14,042,527
5,270,363 4,705,681
905.180 767.156
24,956,512 19,515,364

..

4
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DIGITAL FRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: UT22000.2008FPTC173230
Notes lo financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

23. Other Expenses

{Amountin®)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particulars 31 Mareh 2078 31 March 2017

Lesse rental - operating lease 139,558 19,036,246
Foreign Exchange Rate Difference 1,257,891 534,511
Office Expense 4,016,502 4,070,800
Professional fConsuliancy charges 3,588,828 1,911,337
Conveyance Expenses 369,422 490,989
Electricity & Genset Expenses 1,795,131 2,173,867
Repair & Maiglenance 7,283,538 6,320,893
Office Sadanery 740,088 612,221
Telephane 1,227,876 1,133,816
Rent expenses 8,942,127 8,963,623
Auditor's Remvuneration 550,000 557,833
Amount writien afl’ 366,883 217,334
Insurance Expenses 156,655 104,132
Rales & Taxes 74,213 1,842,617
Provision For Doubrful Debis 11,655,548 6,388,502
School ¥an Running Expns 2,055,946 1,966,577
Miscellaneons Expenses (Refer Note 23 1) 3,439,127 4,668,464
Allowance on Expected Credit Losses (996,454 3,188,260
Total ather expenses 46,694,882 64,742,022

231 Tvincludes Security Charges Rs 14 10 Tacs (PY: Rs.11.62 lacs) , recruitment charges Rs 0 77 lacs (PY: Rs. 9.46 Jacs), couner charges Rs 6.45

lacs (PY: R, 619 laes) and collection ingentive Rs §.47 lacs (PY : R# 3 31 lacs)

Payment to auditor
For the year ended

For the year ¢nded

Particul
armeulars 31 March 2018 31 March 2017
As audilor
For Audit 550,000 550,000
Reimbursement of expenses - 7833
530,000 557,433
24. Depreciation and Amortisation Expneses
(Amount in ¥)
. For the year ended  For the year euded
Farticulars 31 March 2013 31 March 2017
Depreciation of propenty, plunt & evipement 27,838,961 26,415,614
Amortisation of intangible assets 23,195,604 22,637.213
Total depreciation and amartisation expneses 53,004,565 49,052,828
25. Compooents of Other Comprehensive Income {QCT)
The disaggregadon of changes in ather comprehensive meome by each type of equity is shawn helow:
During the year ended 315t March 2018
Particulars Relained earnings Taotal
Re-measurmem gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans 28,667 18,667
Tex impact on re-measuremenl geins/(losses) on defined benefit plans (7.382) (7382)
21,285 21.28%
During the year ended 315t March 2017
Particulary Retained enrnines Total
Re-measurmeni gains/{losses) on defined benefil pfans (9),335) (91,339)
Tax impact on re-measuremeni gams/(|osses) on defined benefit plans 28,224 28224
(63.115) {63,115)
26. Earmings per share

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profil for the year attributabie to equiry hoiders by the weighted average number of Equity shares

outstanding during the year.

Duhned EPS anounts are calculated by dividing the profit for the year ammbuiable 10 equity hoiders by ihe weighted average number of equity shares
oulstanding during 1he vear plus the weighted average number of equity shares diat would be issued on conversion of all dilurive potential equitv

shares into equiry shares.

The fallowang reflects the income and share dara used in the basic and diluted EPS compuations

. For ihe yvear ended
Particubnrs

For the year ended

31 March 2018 31 March 2017
Net Lass after Tax ag per Statement of Profit and Loss atmbutable 10 Equite {29.351,867) (73.846.740)
Shareholders
Werzited Average number of Equiry Shares used as denorminator Jor caleulztng Bastc BLITE Y 14,728,920
(8359 )
Baswe Ermings per share M.Aas) (213
Lilined £ ! R (2.13%
Face B 1o
Note: o LTt afwerzhted sver 2ot Fronvesnes o he e ot the tme of conversien of oo nally conseribly o efereass Cares e orne
dilume i o Fonce ot oo coadenaine b e @il pan chare .

-



DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED

CIN: U72200DL2008PTCI73250

Nofes to financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2018

26
A,

1T

i

v

VI

Defined benefit plans:
Gratuity

The company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees The Gratuity Plan provides a
lump sum payments to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or termination of employement, of an amount
equivalent to 15 days salary for each completed year of service. Vesting oecurs on eompletion of 5 eontinuous years of service as

per Indian law. However, no vesting condition applies in case of death.

The Company has provided for gratuity based on the actuaria! valuation done &s per Project Unit Credit Method.

The following table sets out for the status of gratuity plan:

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17
Change in present value of defined benefit obligation during the year
Defined Benefit Obligation as of Prior Year 2,781,033 1,917,455
Service Cost : -
Current service cost 795,068 671,578
Past service cost 14,928 -
Interest Cost 183,268 146,814
Benefit payments directly by employer (515,875) (46,154)
Actuarial (Gain) / Loss - Demographic
Actuarial {Gain) / Loss - Financial (91,912) 126,068
Actuarial {Gain) / Loss - Experience 63,245 (34,729
Defined Benefit Obligation at the end of Current Year 3,233,755 2,781,033
Change in fair value of plan assets during the year
There is no plan assets -
Net asset! (liability) recognised in the balance sheet
Net defined benefit liability (asset) at prior year end 2,781,033 1,917,455
Defined benefit cost included in P&L 997,264 818,393
Total remeasurements included in OCt (28,667) 91,339
Direct benefit payments by Employer (515,875) (46,154)
Net defined benefit liability (asset) - end of period 3.233,755 2,781,033
Expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss during the year
Service eost 813,996 671,378
Net interest cost 183,268 146,814
Total expense recognised in the emplovee benefit expense 997,264 818392
Recognised in other comprchensive income for the year
Cumuiative OCI - (Income)/Loss, Beginning of Period 91,339 -
Total remessurements included in QCl (28,667) 91,339
Cumulative QCI - {Income)/Loss, End of Period 62,672 91.339
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation
Year | 348,189 288,164
Year 2 405,774 200,505
Year 3 431,973 331,024
Year 4 437,752 359,506
Year 5 411,422 361,382
Year 6190 10 1,602,316 1,417,462

Significam Actuarial Assumplions for the detcrmination ol the delined benelit obiigation are diseount rawe and expecied salary
increase. The sensnivity anatysis below, have been delermined hased on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions oecuring
al the end of the reponing peried, while halding all olher assumptions constant. The resull of Sensitivity anaiysis is given below:




VIl

VIII

i

Quantitative senstivity analysis for significant assumptions is as below

a) Impact of change in discount rate

Presen! Value of obligation al the end of the period

Discount rate - 100 basis points 3422585 2,954,801

Discount rate + 100 basis points 3063562 2,625,074
Impact of change

Discount rate - 100 basis points (188,830) (173,768)
Discount rate + 100 basis points 170,193 155,959
b) Impact of change in salary

Present Value of obligation at the end of the period

Rate - 100 basis points 3059791 2,624,270
Rate + 100 basis points 3421156 2,950,800
Impact of change

Discount rate - 100 basis points 173,964 156,763

Discount rate + 100 basis points {187.401) (169.767)
Actuarial assumptions

Discount Rale 7.45% 6.95%
Futuse salary increase 6.00% 6.00%
Retiremnent Age (years) - 60 Years 60 Years
Mortality rates inclusive of provision for disability [ALM (2006-G8) IALM (2006-08)
Withdraw] rate 15% 15%

The actuarial valuation of the present valualion of defined benefit obligation were carried out as at March 31, 201 8. The present
valuc of the defined benefit obligation and the related currenl scrvice cost and past service cost, were measured using the

Projected Unit Credit Method.

As per para 83 of Ind AS 19, the rale used to discount post-employment benefit obligations (both funded and unfitnded) shall be
determincd by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting periad on government bonds.

Leave Epcashment

In respect of leave eneashment benefit, accrual is made on the basis of a year-end actuarial valualion in pursuance of the

Company’s leave rules.

The Company has provided for leave benefits based on the aetvarial valuation done as per Project Unit Credit Method.

The following table sets out for the status of teave encashment plan:

Particulars 2017-18 2016-17

Change in present value of defined benefit obligation during the year

Defined Benefit Obligation as of Prior Year 2,560,815 1,760,998
Service Cost: -

Current service cost 989,968 801,392
Interest Cost 163,362 128,449
Benetit payments directly by employer (598,723) (207.171)
Actuanial (Gain)/ Loss - Demographic -
Actuarial (Gain}/ Loss - Financial (78,161) 101,593
Actuarial (Gainy / Loss - Experience 10,591 {24,448}
Defined Beacfit Obligation at the end of Current Year 3.047.850 2.360.815
Change in fair value of plan assets during the vear -
| There is no plan usse -

Net agset/ (linhilitv vecognised in the balsnce <heet

welichineg benchi vabiline ravct) ot priar year g 2560815 1760598

g A
-
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Defined benefit cost included in P&L 1,085,760 1,006,988
Total remeasurements included in OCIT - -
Direct benefit payments by Employer {598.725) (207,171)
Net defined benefit {iability (asset) - end of period 3,047,850 2,560,815
Expense recognised in the statement of profit or loss during the year

Service cost 989,968 801,392
Net interest cost 163,362 128,449
Immediate recognition of loss (67,570} 77,147
Total expense recognised in the employee benefit expense 1,085,760 1,006,988
Recognised in other comprehensive income for the year

Cumulative OCI - (Income)Loss, Beginning of Period - -
Total remeasurements included in OCI - -
Cumulative OC - (Income)/Loss, End of Period - -
Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Year ] 513,584 420,565
Year2 371,096 378,504
Year 3 333,963 340,632
Year 4 300,527 306,529
Year 5 270,418 275,821
Year 6 to 10 1,049,831 1,069,742
Quantitative senstivity aoalysis for significant assumptions is as below

a} Impact of change in discount rate ~

Present Value of obligation at the end of the period

Discount rate - 100 basis points 3,208,364 2,700,557
Discount rate + 100 basis points 2,902,953 2,435,102
[mpact of change

Discount rate - 100 basts points (160,514} (139,742
Discount rate + 100 basis points 144,897 125,713
b} Impact of change in salary

Present Value of obligation at the end of the period

Rate - 100 basis points 2,899,742 2,432,878
Rate + 100 basis points 3,209,040 2,700,452
[mpact of change

Discount rate - 100 basis peints 148,108 127,937
Discount rate + 100 basis points (161,190) {139.637)
Actuarial assumptions

Discount Rate 7.45% 6.95%
Future salary increase 6.00% 6.00%
Retirement Ape (years) 60 Years 60 Years
Meortality rates inclusive of provision tor disability LALM (2006-08} [ALM (2005-08)
Withdrawl rate 15% 15%

7 /"%5;
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DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200DL2008PTC173250

Notes to financlal statements far the vear ended 31 MMarch 2018

27  Disclosures ag required by Indian Aecounting Standard (Ind 43) 101 *Firsi Time Adaption Of IndianAccounting Standards':

(a) Recontlliztion of Equity as at April 1, 2016 and 313t March, 2017

April1,2016

Particulars April 31st, 2017
IGAAP Tnd AS Adj Tod AS IGAAP Ind AS Ad] Ind AS
Non-turrent assets
Property, Plant and Equiprment 90,714,340 0 90,714,340 90,920,633 - ©0,920,633
Capital work i progress 1,675,618 0 1,673,618 297,638 - 207,613
Other Ineangible Assels 146,577,266 - 146,577,266 127,476,883 - 122,476,333
[ntangible assets under Development 18,384,721 - 18,384,721 19,026,615 19,026,613
Fimancial assels -
- Loans 2,742,384 (1,466,588} 1,275,796 2,388,634 (1251242) 1,137,392
Deferred wax assets (nel) 97,474,119 - 97.474,119 97,474,119 - 97,474,119
Orther non-current assels 1,100,000 613,697 1,713,697 1.100,000 688,111 1,788,111
Total nor-current assels 358,663,447 (352,8%0) 357,815,556 338,684,526 {363,131) 338,121,335
Current assels
Inventeries 7.571,713 - 75711,718 2,761,936 - 2,761,986
Financial assets
- Trade receivables 141,566,073 (32,990,790) 103,575,283 122,938,896 (29,802,530) 93,136,366
- Laans - 587,172 587,173 - 363,612 363,612
- Cash and cash equivalenis 6,064,001 - 6,064,001 6,833,510 - 6,833,510
Other current assets 16,647,725 203,322 16,851,048 12,887,009 167,963 13,054,973
Total current assets 171,549,518 {32,200,29%5) 139,649,223 145,421,402 (29,270,955) 116,150,447
Total assets 530,517,965 (33,053,186) 497,464,778 484,105,928 (29,534,086} 454,271,842
Equity and liabilives
Equity
Equity share capital 347,289,200 - 347,289,200 347,289,200 - 347,289,200
Orher equity (319,585,774} 144,731,126 (174,854,649) (233,663,8135) (7,344,094} (261,007,909)
~ Preference Shares 221,704,000 {221,704,000) - 61,704,000 (61,704,000} -
Tetal equity 249,407,426 (76,972,874} 172,434,551 155,329,185 (69,048,094) 86,281,291
Non-corrent Habilities
Financial liabilities
- Bormrowings 70,350,315 43,919,688 114,300,003 71,788,000 39,214,008 111,002,008
Provisions 4,633,119 B 4,633,119 3,166,638 - 3,166,638
Total non current liabilides 15,013,434 43,919,688 118,923,122 74,954,638 39,214,008 114,163,646
Current liabilities
Financial habilities
- Bomowings 46,022,297 - 46,022,297 172,705,502 - 172,705,502
- Trade payables 117,004,148 - 117,004,148 29,378,062 - 29,378,062
- Other financial liabililies 31,415,886 - 31,416,686 31,861,861 - 31,861,881
Crther current liabitines 10,138,289 - 10,137,489 18,510,734 - 18,530,784
Provisions 1,516,481 - 1,516,484 1,345,596 . 1,345,695
Total current lialilifies 206,097,102 - 206,097,105 253,821,905 - 253,821,905
Total equity and lizbilities 530517.963 (3,053,136 497.464.778 484,105,928 (29,834.,086) 454,271,842
(b) Elfect of Ind AS adoption en the Statement of Profit and Loss for the year euded 3 1st March, 2017
Year ended 315t Erre';:‘:':;\; P Year ended 31t
Pardculars March 2017 .. March 2007~ IND
IGAAP n‘:ms:l:]g to Ind AS
Revenue from Operations 292,714,580 (2,454,738) 290,259,842
Otber Income 478.793 167.935 646.728
Total Income (T} 293,193,373 | (2.236,303)] 250,906,570
Expenses
Purchases of Stock in Irzde 117,506,790 - 117,506,790
(Increase)/decrense 1n inventones of finished goods and slock in trade (4,609,732) - (4,809.732)
Emplovee benelits expense 72,098,389 (91,339 72,007,050
Selling and Distribution expenses 49,102,389 (2,454.73%) 46647651
Finance cost 17,645,881 1,869,483 19,515,364
Depreciabon and ameriisalion expense 49.052.826 - 49,052,826
Oiher expenses l S8.51R.780 - 6.223.233 64.742.022
Total expenses (1) 359115332 | 5,546,639 | 364661571
Profiti({loss) before excepsional ilems und tax (1-11) (63,921,937 (7,433.442) (73,755401)
Exncepiional item - - -
Profitf(loss) beltre (ax R | (65.921 959y  t7833.442) (73.755.401)
Tax expense: '
Current tax -
Ineome 12x adwsi=ont seiasd o varher s ears - - -
Delersed 1ax (creqi ¥ charge - - -
Tatal 1ax expenscs | - -
Profit (Loss) lor the perrod (65.921.050) {7.833.442) (73.735.401)
\Olher Comprehessive 'ncome
- Iters that will not i veclussified (o profil or foss '
Re-memrir wiont 1o oiig) s 8G - [N (91 33y
- TS 25229 |

il fga 258 0, u]e,
income lox |ke perigd {Compr

Tas unpaci on
Tolal Comprelic

Trofil (Losy) itnd O Coneprehiensive Incomge for (he

period}y
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Res¢rves Reconcilintion

Particluars Retained Equity componet ESOP Reserve Total
earnings of compound
linancial
instrimnents
Ag al3Lst March, 2016 {253,663,815) - - {153,663 A15)
Ind AS Adjustments: -
Adjustment on eccount of security deposit discouniing under (31,536) - -
Ind AS (31,556)
Adjustment on account of ESQPs related (o subisdiary co
empley ees - - - -
Adiusiment en eccount of impairement of Lrade receivable (2%,802,530) - - {29,302,530)
Adiusiment en zccount of neliona? interest expenses on preference share {4,201,501) - - {4,201,501)
Adiustment on accpunt of Equity Comoonemt of NCOCPS - 26,69],49) - 26,681,493
Adiusiment on accounl of Deflered fax asseldiability recosmized on Ind AS adjusiments - hd
As at 1 Aoril 2015 as per Ind AS (297,699,401) 26,691,493 - (261,007,909)
o~



DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN: U72200D1L.2008PTC173250
Nates to financial statements Cor the vear ended 31 March 2018

29 Deferred tax assets (ret)

a.

Deferred tax is calcalated, in full, on all temporasy timing differences under the liability method based on tax rates (and tax taws) thal have been
enacted or substanlively enacted at the balanee sheet date. The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:

Pacticulars As at As at As at
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017 April 1, 2016
At start of year 97,474,119 97,474,119 97474119
Ind-AS transilion adjustment - -
Credit to Statement of Profit and Loss 29.672 328 . -
At the end of year 127,146,446 57474112 97 474,119
Deferred tax assets at the end of the reporting period and deferred tax credit in Statement of Profit and Loss and Other
Comprehensive Income
: As at Credit As at
rticul
Farticulars Aprit1,2017 _tn profit or loss March 31,2018
Deferved tax asset in relation to:
Property, plant and equipment (38,120,894) - (38,120,894)
Carried Forward Losses 81,036,558 - 81,036,558
Unabsorbed Depreciation 101,848,033 - 101,848,033
Provisions 15,434,558 - 15,434,558
160,198,255 - 160,198,255
Particulars Year Ended Year Ended
March 31, 2018 March 31, 2017
Income tax recognised in Statemeat of Profit and Loess
Deferred tax
In respeet of the current year (29,672,328)
Total income 1ax expenses recognised in the current year - (29,672,328)
The income tax expenses for the year can be reconeiled 10 the aecounting proft as follows:

. Year Ended Year Ended
Particulars March 31,2018 March 31, 2017
Loss before tax (47,437,174)

30.90%

Applicable Tax Rate

Computed Tax Expense

Tax eflect of ;

Expenses sutject lo dming difference

Tax impact on Expenses nol allowed

Tax Expenses recognised in Staterment of Profit and Loss

105,197911
32,506,154
28,224

SO



DS DIGITAL PRIVATE LIMTTED
CIN: U1200DL2008PTC 173250
TNotes 10 firancisl statements Tor the vear ended 31 March 2013

3l

a2

n

Dues 1o Migre, smal) and mediom enlerprises s defingd wndgr (he MSMED Act, 2008

The Company has requeszed 115 various suppliers, who may bt the enterprises covered under the Micrp, Small and Mediwm Enlerpriscs
Developent Act, 2006, Jo furmish the relevan) registrition cenificate under thal Acl, but the said information is yet ke b reeeived il date)
and hence, in absence of the same. ne specific amounl of pulstanding on account of purchases made / services abuined Irom soch supplizrs
can be ascenained

Cunlingen! Llabililles

Asal
Particulars Agal Asal Apri) 151,
March 315 2018 March 3lsL 2017 Pl
Claums againgt the Company ol ackmowledged as debis
1. VAT claim by §. P. VAT Act. 2,730,000 2,750,000 2.730.000
2. Contractual Qbligations 2.031.000 - -
4.787.000 1.750.000 2.750.000
Company has paid Rs 11 Lakhs for levy of penally /S 54(1) ol U P. VAT Act Appeal filed by the conmpany is pendiag.
Related Party Tiaclonure
Relaled Party disch in o2 with the A ing Standard AS$-18 on “Related Party Disclosures™ issucd by the Insiinate of
Chartered Accountants of India is given as woder in respect of celated paries with whom wansaclions e taken place:
a) Related partics and their nidationship
n Holding Company -8 Chand and Company Limiled
) Asspeiate Comparies / Firms -Safari Digital Educarion Initiatives ™1 Lid
3 c jes under same M ~Blackic & Son {Cafcunay Py Lid
-Edutor Techaologies India Pyt Lid
-Eurasia Publishiog House Pvt Lid
-New Sarasnat House (India) PvL Lid,
-Nirja Publishers and Printers Pyt L
-Vikas Pyblishing House Bv1 Lid-
-3 Chand Eduiech P Lid
ay Direcior's fistarual Shareholdings -Hetel Tourisy
-SC Hotel Tourist Delave Py Lid
-Amenity Public School
5 ‘Key Management Personnel - Mr, Hunanshu Gupla
- Mr. Dinesh Kemar Jhonjhninsala
- Mr, Dcep Mishra
- Ms, Mora Kaushik
Key Manageriad Compaaics Dircciory
Nahure of Transactons Holding Company Assocoles Persannel & their under Same Subxtantlal
relatives il [ Sharcholdi
Reimbursement of Expenses
Edutor Technoloics India Pyt Lid -
(L09.330)
§ Chand and Conupary Limiled 227.871
613.467)
Sale of Product/Services
§ Chand and Compmany Limiwd 3.950.559
Vikas Publishine Housz Privatc Limited -
Naew Sarswau House (Indw) Private Limited 738,335
Loans and Advances Received
S Chand and Comgany Limited 42.333.450
Niria Publishers and Printers Pvi Lid 25.000.000
Blackie & Son (Calcutia) Pyt Lid 16.500.000
Eutasia Pyblishing House Pyt LId 5.000.000
Safan Digital Educauon lnutratives Pvi Lid -
(166932
Repavinent of Loans red Advances received
Safari Digital Edveauon laitiaives Pyt Lid -
10, HEG (WD
Purchase of ProducSericey .
Vikas Publishne House Private Limited )
(1316643
Hatel Tourist VIR O34
651,586
$ Chand sand Coumpany Limined ; 12,042,157
180194y
Eduor Tecknalozzs [ndia It Lid .
= [3.7HET783)
Salary, Perks snd Allowances
Mona Kaushik 1471716
b (1487971} .
Lnterest Expense
Safzn Digal Eduanon Ineves i L <3200
Eurasis Publisiune House Pv1 Lid |
< Son 1Cukurtay Pa Lid H
| Nina Fatdesliers qad Pringers Pvi Lid i
- i .



M

35

$ Chand and Company Limited 1.203.54
(2.836.198)
Opcrating Lease
§ Chand and Company Lumited 139.558
16.260,048
Laans and Advances received as at 3st March 2418
5 Chand and Comeany Limited 43,616,602
Niria Publishers and Prinlers Fxi Lid 26,105.471
Blackic & Son (Caleuhta) Pyt Lid 7303278
Eurasiz Publishing House Py Lid $.266.195
Saluei Digieal Education Inizitatoes Py Lid. 63430675
{67.950.11 1)
Trade Reeelvables as of 31st March 2013
Amenity Public $chool -
1227.000%
Newe Saraswali Heuse (India) Privale Limired -
11.332.349
Vikas Pyblishing House Private Linited N
2. 580.971)
Trade Pavables as al 319 March 2018
Edutor Techaologies T Py Lid. 1477322
(1.501.381)
$ Chand and Companv Limited 30.329.047
. 113.036.745)
Hotel Tourist L 162.355
(344321
(Fiwures in brackeis represents previous vear figures)
Nate: All these partics has been identified & certified by managemens.
Unhedzed forelen cucrency exposere : -
Particulars J1-Mar-18 Si-Mar-17
Trade receivables: - 1INR) {INR)
Qaani Riyal 1,625,522 QAR 426,000 17.90/- per QAR 3.416.37) | QAR 32000 106,76 per QAR
UAE Dirkams 2934472 AED 165,600 17.7%- per AED 2.781.529 | AED 160,000 17.38- Per AED
United States Dollar 40,163 USD 14,331 63.60/- per USD - - -
Szudi Amb Rival 751.123 SAR 35.000 17.36/- per SAR - - -
Total 12.284.230 6.197500

Figancial lasiruments - Accounling classifications and (alr value meawrements

The fair value of the assels 20d Liabilfties are incTuded al the amonni a1 which the instrument could be exchanged ia 2 currenl rzasaction berween willing parles,
other than in foreed or lignidation sale.
The K ing noethods and ions were used (o estimatc Lhe Gir values.

Fuir Value of eash and shori-derm deposits, Lrade and other short term recenables. trade payables. ether curreny lisbilities, and other Gmncial instruments approximate
their curying amounts largely due 1@ the short lerm tahyrides of thes insturents.

Pumancial instrumenis with fixed and varlable isterest ries are cvelupied by the company based on pauatie(ers such 5 interest rics and individua) credit sorthiness of
the coumtcrparty. Based oo Lhis cvaluadion, =llovwances are wken 16 the acconnt for the expected (osses of these meeivables.

The compagy uses the following hrerarchy for determining and disclosing che Gir value of fi aancial i by Jt hinz

Level | Guoted prices (naadjusied} in active markess for identical asetts or Wabilties thal the eality ¢an acoss af Lhe meanurement daie,
Level § Inpuls other than quoled prices included within Level | that are observable for Lhe asser or Lability, either diectly or indiresuly
Level 1 Uncbservablc inpuls for the asset or bability.

Carrying amount Jar Valoe
Fuancla) assets at amortised cost As 3 Lst Apnl, 2016 Lever m
Trade recsivables 91,116,366 -
Cash und Bank talances 6.833.510 -
Loans 1301004 -
Total 101.470.880 -
Finaagiaf liabilities ot amortised coat
Barrovinzs 283709510
Trade pavables 29.378.062 -
Other finunoal liabilifies 3LE61EG! -
Carrving amoumt iair Vaiue
Finaneial assets at wnvorised cost As a3 st Marco 2017 Lavel WL
108,

Trady; rectivables

Cask and Tank balances 60641001
Loans SETU69 -
Securty Deposn with others -
Tora) 116.302.253 -
Financial liamliliey a¢ amortised cost
16432 30 -
11744 (18 L]
JLAlGons =

i
el

Financeal asvels 41 amorised coxl

il o=
s

L



Totl

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Bomowines 293 417.965
Tragke pavables 67,955,625
26,570 495

Other financial liabihiics

36 Disclosure requlred under IND AS 17 (as Lessce)

Opcrating tease
™ . " Nol Larer thae 1| Later than | year par Laier than §
¢ future minimum Jease payment under operating lease year fater thun § year

For Compuier bardware -

Leasz pavment recapnised in the Siatement of profit and loas for the year arc as wader

J-blas-18 3i-Mar17
For Campater hardware - 19.096.246
- 19056 24
37 Adduioaal information
Jve30i8 Jrs2017
Amoynl (Ra} Amonut (Re}
Eamnings in foreien cxchange;
A Expornt of goods /Services 34.334.349 5%.178.107
S AH 3G $9378.107
Expendilure in loreign cumency
A Travehar 3.926.201 426380
& inefB) & issi 17.825.181 £.826.705
21,751 382 11090535

38 Previous Yeur Flgurea have been cogrouped/rearranged nherever necessary.
39 Siandards issed but yet effective
lod AS 114 Revemuee from Cootracls with Costamers

Ind AS 115 was nolified cn 28 March 2018 and establishes a five-step model 1o account for revenue arising from contracts with
customers. Under Ind AS 115, revenue Is recognised at an amount that reflects the consideration 1o which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for trensferring geods or services to a customer,

The new revenue standard wifi supersede 2l current revenue recognition requirements under Ind AS. Either a full retrospective
applicatlon or 3 medified retrospective application is required fer annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2018, The Company
will adopt the new standard on the required effective date using the medified retrospective method. The Company has established
2n implementation team to implement Ind AS 115 related to the recognition of revenue from contracts with custemers and it
continues to evaluate the changes to accounting systemt and processes, and addltional disclosure requirements that may be
necessary, A relfable estimate of the guantitative impact of Ind AS 115 on the financial statements will only be possible once the
implementation project has been compteted.

For Madan & Asgociales [ de [of ¢ Baard of Directors of
Mee o Accountants Di vazie Limited
MK Malun
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